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Daniel Rawlings, of Calvert County, in 1748, named sons,
Daniel and John, and daughters, Nancy and Margaret. He held
tract “Rawlings’ Choice” “left me by my father.”” He bought,
also, his brother Isaac’s lands.

Of this family upon “Rawlings’ Manor,” one brother, Isaac,
still later, was in Mississippi when that was only a territory. In
one of his letters, which I have seen, he wrote that “his brother,
Captain Thomas Rawlings, was then at the front with General
Jackson in his Indian campaign at Pensacola.” After the war,
Captain Thomas returned to Calvert, and, at forty years of age,
married his cousin, Mary Dalrymple, whose mother was Christiana
Clare, of John. She was then a girl of fifteen years. Together
they lived upon “Rawlings’ Choice” and had one son who died
in early manhood. This girl of fifteen years, later married another
cousin, her first lover, Dr. S. J. Cook, and became the mother of
Mrs. J. D. Warfield.

Anthony Rawlings, Jr., of Dorchester, in 1728, left a colt to
his father, and named his sister Mary, and cousins, Mary and Charles
Daughety. To his brother, John, he left his clothes and silver shoe
buckles. Sister Margaret Hail was made legatee of all his personal
property and his executrix

Aaron Rawlings, of Anne Arundel County, in 1741, named his
wife, Susannah, and sons, Jonathan, Aaron, William and Stephen.
The last two inherited “ Darnall’s Groves,” in Prince George County.
“My lands in Baltimore County, called ‘Brown’s Adventure,’” to
sons and daughter Ann. Aaron to hold the homestead.

This testator’s wife was Susannah Beard, the daughter of
Stephen. Her will closes the Rawlings previous to the Revolution. In
1762, she named her sons, Aaron, Moses, Richard, daughter Mary,
and four married daughters, Ann, Susannah, Rachel and Elizabeth.
Her son, Aaron, and son-in-law, Gassaway Watkins, executors.

The further records of this family have been already published.

THE SEWELLS OF VIRGINIA.

Henry Sewell came to Virginia from England previous to 1632.
He gave his name to “Sewell’s Point” at the entrance to Elizabeth
River, opposite to Fortress Monroe. His wife was Alice Willoughby,
daughter of Thomas Willoughby, who came to Virginia in 1610,
and was Justice of Elizabeth City, 1628; Burgess, 1629-32, and
Councilor, 1644-50. At the court holden May 31st, 1640, Henry
Sewell and Captain Sibley were authorized to build a church at Mr.
Sewell’s Point. August 2nd, 1640, Captain Thomas Willoughby,
* Esquire, Captain John Sibley, Mr. Henry Sewell, Mr. Edward Wind-
ham anc Mr. William Julian, are to pay for themselves and others;
the church minister, Mr. Thomas Harrison.
Peter Porter’s name appears in 1641. He, in 1650, settled in
Maryland, at the head of Severn River, “Peter Porter’s Ridge.”
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In 1641, the orders of the Court directed that this parish church
should be built at Mr. Henry Sewell’s Point at the cost and charge
of the inhabitants, and chapel of ease at Elizabeth River.

Henry Sewell had two children, Anne and Henry. Anne was
born 1634, and married Lemuel Mason, son of Francis Mason. Henry
Sewell, the younger, was born 1639. Henry Sewell, the elder, was
elected to the House of Burgesses from Elizabeth City, in 1632, and
from Lower Norfolk County in 1639. He died, 1644, and at a Court
holden same year in Lower Norfolk County, at the house of Ensign
Thomas Lambert, February 20th, “The Court doth think fit and
orders it, Mr. Matthew Phillips, the administrator of Mr. Henry
Sewell ,deceased, shall within ten days satisfy and pay to Mr. Thomas
Harrison, clerk, one thousand pounds of tobacco, and satisfaction
in consideration for the burial and preaching of the funeral sermon
of Mr. and Mrs. Sewell, deceased, and for breaking ground in the
chancel of the church for the burial of Mr. and Mrs. Sewell.

Mr. James Warner was elected, in 1649, Church Warden a
Sewell’s Point, and, in 1651, settled on the Severn River, Maryland.

At a Court, holden February 25th, 1649, the opinion is con-
cerning the estate of Henry Sewell, with the consent of John Holmes,
overseer, with Lemuel Mason and Anne, daughter of Henry Sewell,
witnesses, agreed the estate of Mr. Matthew Phillips, late deceased,
be responsible for the estate of Henry Sewell, and Mrs. Ann Phillips
administratrix of said Matthew Phillips, responsibility to be left to
the decision of four disinterested persons. Henry Sewell, the younger
then ten years old, to be sent abroad by orders of the Court for
seven years, in charge of his kinsman, Mr. Thomas Lee. A deposi-
tion taken in 1662, shows Henry Sewell, the younger, to have been
born, 1639, and a deposition taken in 1672, shows Henry Sewell,
the younger, deceased sine prole.

The custom in England at this time, of giving the same christian
name to two or more sons was not uncommon, for instance, Henry
the elder, Henry the younger, and Henry the middle. The Mary-
land settler was evidently of this family.

There were quite a number of people in the vicinity of Sewell’s
Point about 1650, who came up to Maryland and settled on or near
the Severn River. Among them, Edward Lloyd, Cornelius Lloyd,
Matthew Howard, Thomas Todd, William Crouch, James Horner,
Nicholas Wyatt, Thomas Howell, Thomas Gott, William Galloway,
Peter Porter, James Warner, Richard Acton and others.

The following is an account sales, in 1638, for Henry Sewell,
Sewell’s Point, Virginia, from his factor in London, England, of
tobacco sent over in the ships, America and Alexandria, and for
one-half of a cargo in a shallop with sassafras roots, sold in England,
and showed the cash receipts to have been £650, 19s. and 6d.
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William Kirby. The above named children of Benjamin Kirby
went to Baltimore previous to 1783. William Kirby was in business
I Baltimoro, at the comer of Calvert and Water Strects, from
1796 to 1800.

William Kirby bought “Pratt’s Choice,” West River, in 1802,
trom Thomas Tillard, and in his will, dated 1818, named bis wifc,
Mary, and children, William, Prancis, Benjamin, Solomon, Josoph,
George, Jane, Anne, Sarah and Charlotte Kirby.

George Kirby marricd Anna Randall at St Anne’s, Annapolis,
October 25th, 1708. She was a descendant of Christopher Randall,
who settled on the Severn River previous to 1679. Died 1847.

William Kirby, of George—Anne Sewell Mallonce, 1883, died
1872, Tssue, Leonard, born 1834, died 1891; Isabella, born 1836,
diod 1877; Norval, Ann, William and George A. Kirby. Norval
Ann Kirby—Philip Hammond, 1862, ~Tssue, Anne—Woodland C.
Philips; Cora— Ralph Gilbert Lee; William—Anna Barbara Benson;
Norval” Adele—Charles Leonard Owens; Maud—William Henty
Cole: Philip and Zoe Kirby Hammond, unmarried. ~Isabella Kirby
died 18772 Arthur Hammond, 1865. Issue, Luther Kirby Ham-

mond.

Philip and Arthur Hemmond were lineal descendants of
General John Hammond, who dicd, 1707. Upon the estate of Major
Philip Hammond, now owned by Mr. George Kirby, are the follow-
ing monuments:

“This monument, erected in memory of & gre
Philip Hammond, Esquire, who died May 10th,
year of his age.”

This mamument covers the remains of Mis. Rachel Hammond,
daughter of Jobn Brice, Isquire, and reliet of Philip Mammond,
Esquire; born April 13th, 1711; died, Tuesday, April 11th, 1780

“Tloro Tios the body of Mrs. Rachel Hopkins, daughter of
Philip Hammond, Esquire, deceased, born May 2nd, 1740; - died
September 11th, 1773.”

This monument covers the remains of Denton Hammond,
son of Philip Hammond, Esquire, born March 10th, 1745; died
March 2nd, 1784

“This monument covers the remains of Philip Hammond, son
of Philip Hammond, Esquire, born April 2nd, 1739; died 1783."

“Hore lies the body of Mr, Matthias Hammond, son of Philip
Hammond, Fsquire, born May 24th, 1740; died March 11th, 1786."

“Erected in memory of Colonel Rezin Hammond, son of Philip
and Rachel (Brice) Hammond, his wife; died September 1st, 1809,
in his 65th year” -

SSacred fo the memory of Dr. Matthias Hammond, son of
Philip and Elizabeth (Wright) Hammond, who died, 1819, in his
35th year.”

Sacred to the memory of Elizabeth Mewburn, daughter of
Phillip Hammond, Esquire, Who died 1819, age 22 years.”

at and good man,
1760, in the 64th
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William M. Kirby—Virginia Downing Parrish, of Mis i
jan wning Parrish, ssouri.
i{a;l;;)e},,lwmmm Clyde, Guy Donnell, Leila Virginia and Anne Louis
George A. Kirby—Mary Blla Hodges, daughter of
Josephine, A. Todges. Tssue, Bessic, Sowell, Mary friscaerdiod
William George Kirby. Bessie Sewell Kirby—George R. A. Hiss
n 1900, and he died in 1904, Issuc, George R. A, Hiss, born 1003
Mr. Hiss, was a lineal descendant of Colonel William Burgess, who
was appointed by Lord Baltimore in 1665, to command the militia

of the province, and acted as governor during Lord Baltimore's

absence.
ACTON.

Richard Acton was at Annapolis i i i
1 cton polis in 1657. Daniel Dul
one of his pleadings in & contest over the early surveys of Am;l:génl?
id that Thos, Todd probubly assignod his Annapolis survey to
oton, whilst Thomas Hall’s lands going to Christopher, the son,
who left it to his mother, Elizabeth, and both dying without issue,
the Jand was eschated. ' Todd's Tarbor, in the hinds of Robert,
usby, slso reverted back by escheat. 'This indeed took place
pretty generally in Annapolis. The Lovd Proprietary reserved lands
in the city, but Thomas Bordley and Thomas Larkin, combining
with Lancelot Todd, pretending to be heir-at-law of said Thomas
Todd, depived the Lord Proprictor of i
pon the south limits of Annapolis to-day, is “Murray’s Hill,”
i |l|umo,d for the distinguished family who has Bl it for many ye‘;lr's.
s prosent owner is the former paymaster of the navy, Murray of
tho West River branch. This tract, upon which stands a very old
4 :-iljagml Jomestead, was Tomaly’ known as “Acton” and it
adjoins, if not a part of the Carroll estate, whi
i, i ot estate, which was the survey of
John Acton was a son of Richard Acton; and S
: ! cton; aral, the daugh-
toaf Rchard—Jobn Marriot, the pioncer stler of - Portovs L
hilip Hammond, the rich merchant, built the present mansio
upon the Acton tract, now Murray’s Hill. P ass ey

CAPTAIN JOHN WORTHINGTON.

There are many traditions but few records of this fami
“All who bear the name of Worthington in this eou\?t‘:;ly’. says
W. Worthington Fowler, in his notes on_the Worthington
family, “derived their origin’ from two sources: Tirst, from an
immigiant who settled in Maryland, Sccond, from Nicholas
- Warthington, who came to New England in 1650, and was the only
|mm{‘g'}1i:\t of that name in New England at that time.”
ere is on record, in the archives of Pennsylvania, a coroner’s
Inquest upon the body of a Worthington et o “dtod in
ge to that province, which shows he belonged to the Worth-
jgtons of Manchester, England.”  Mr. Fowler adds.
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« About twenty miles northeast of Liverpool, in the Hundred
of Leyland, is the town of Worthington, estublished, “says Burke,
“in high repute from the time of the Plantagenets.” The old hall
where the family resided for seven hundred years, was pulled down
long ago. The present representative of the family is Edward
Worthington, of “The Bryn,” County Chester, 1868,

The family is connected by marriage with Norris, Orrell, Rad-
cliffe, Lawrence, Ashton, Byron, Leven, Anderson and Standish,
ancestors of Stout Myles Standish, “the Captain of the Puritan
Band.”

The coat-of-arms, given by Burke, is that of the main stem of
Lancashire Worthingtons, viz.: “Argent, three pitch forks (or
tridents), sable, crest, a goat passant, argent, holding in his mouth
an oak branch,”

Our rocords at Annapolis show that Captain John Worthington
was here as early as 1675, and in 1686 bought * Greenberry Forest”
Trom Colonel Nicholas Greenberry. He married, soon after, Sarah,
daughter of Matthew Howard, his neighbor upon the Sever. In
1695, Captain Worthington was appointed associate justico of Anne
Arundel; and, in 1699, was a member of the Legislative Assembly,
during which year his will was written. It reads: “I give and
bequeath to my dear and loving wife, Sarah Worthington, the whole
use and profit and comfort of this my now dwelling plantation,
and all my personal cstate, she paying the legacics hereinafter
specified, and being by me ordered to give all the children what
Tearning the country will afford at her personal cost. And if, in
case my said wife shall marry again, then the children to be for
themsclves at the age of sixtcen, but if she continue a widow, then
all my sons to live with her to’be her assistance and comfort tll

the ago of twenty-one years. And after the decease of my wifo, -

Sarah, then the personal estate to be divided cqually amongst my
children. 2

“Then T give to my son, John Worthington, the plantation T
now live on and all the land adjoining, being four hundred acres,
lying on the Severn River.

“Then T give to my son, Thomas Worthington, my planta-
tion called “Greenberry Forrest,” being four hundred acres, more
or less, and ‘Lowe’s Addition,’ being a tract of three hundred and
fifty acres, all lying near Magothy River.

“Then T give my son, William Worthington, the plantation
called ‘ Howard’s Inheritance,’ containing one hundred and thirty
acres; also a parcel of woodland ground, part of Mr. William
Hopkin's plantation, as doth appear by’ the last will of Mr.
Mobthew Howard, deceased, and two hundred acres, lying where
Mr. Richard Beard’s mill stands; and two hundred and seventy
acres near the fish pond in ‘Bodkin’s Creek,” of the Patapsco River.

“Then I give to my daughter, Sarah Worthington, two young
working negroes, or fifty pounds sterling, at the age of sixteen, or
the day of marringe.”
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Charles Worthington, born after the above will was written
was similarly provided. In addition to the above tracts, the Worth.
ington heirs held “Howard’s Pasture,” “Pendenny and Expecta-
tions” and “ Howardstown,” formerly surveyed for Philip Howard.
~ Tpon a tombstone on the farm of the late R. Tilghman Brice,
just opposite the Naval Academy at Annapolis, may be read the
following inscription: ’

“Here lieth interred, the body of
Captain John Worthington,
" Who departed this life
April 9th, 1701, Aged 51 years.”

The tombstone, an immense slab of greyish marble color, is in
excellent preservation, and the inseription perfectly legible. Tt, also,
bears on top & most. beautiful and remarkable insignin. The inter-
pretation of the crest is, “To him who lies beneath this stone, time
(represented by the hour-glass) has {aken to itself wings (wings,
between which stands the hour-glass). His mortal remains must
here lie (mortality represented by death’s head), until summoned
by the trumpet of the arch-angle (brumpets crossed behind death’s
head) to wear the victor’s crown (laurel wreath).” The slab covers
& well-preserved walled grave, which is only a few yards north of
the homestead, the form and material of which is still preserved.

About 1688, Captain John Worthington married Sarah Howard,
Tasue, John, born 1089; Thomas, 1691; William, 1694; Sarah, 1696;
Charles, 1701. Y T

Jobn, 1713—Tlelen, daughter of Thomas and Mary T
Hommond.  Issue, William, Charles, Vachel, e Thons Detle
Dorscy, Blizabeth—Nicholas Dorsey, John, Samuel and Thomas
Worthington.

John Worthington, Jr., in his will, styled himself merchant
gave to daughter, Ann Dorsey, the homestead, “ Wyatt’s Harbor”s
and “Wyatts Hills” To son, John, * Worthington's Fancy” and

Worthington’s Beginning” and part of “Duvall’s Delight,” “Food

Plenty” and other tracts bought of Orlando Griffith, some 2,620

acres; also “Whiskey Ridge,” at Liberty, Frederick County. To

son, Charles, “Hunting Ground,” “Ridgely’s Range,” “Broken

Ground,” “Howard and Porters Fancy” and “ Abington,” adjoin-

ing, some 950 acres. To Samucl, 1,000 acres, “Welsh’s Cradle,”

in Baltimore County. To son Thomas, three tracts on the Patapsco,
some 1,680 acres. To Elizabeth Dorsey, “Todd’s Risque” and

“Andover.” To granddaughter, Helen Lynch, £60. To grandsons,

John and William, sons of William, deceased, “Whiskey Ridge’

on the Linganore, 700 acres.

William, 1734—Tannah Cromwell. Issue, William, John—
Mary Todd. Her will, of 1776, announced herself as the widow of
John Worthington, and named her daughters, Elinor, Ann, Eliza-
both, Tannah and Margarct. She made her brother, Wi, Linch,

Y

g\%
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cholas) jed Ruth Todd,
¢ Colonel Nicholas) married Ruth Todd,
riffith, Their daughter Mlizabeth,
ter of ITon. Henry Griffith. Their daugl

gm“ﬁ(:“;i‘;:;qe;f onial John Hawkins, Issue, Ruth Dorsey
Huwkine—Dr. Samucl 1. Martin, an *Old Defender of Balimare.
e MoC. Hawkins—Rev. George Schaffer; J LW,
e, Williun Hawkins, Nicholas Dorsey Hawkins and Ann

fawkins—all of Baltimore. )
Grovgi.;:ﬁ:kgs Dorscy. (of Colonel Nicholas)—Catherine Welsh.
Lssus, Bdward Stanhope, Charles Nimrod Warren Dorsey, Joh
T sond. Sarah-Robert Crump; Ann Welsh, Lueretia Armstrong

and Lydia Watkins.

Nicholas Dorsey (o

COLUMBIA.

i ing country. Off to the
xpanded view here reveals a charming coun i
norﬁ:v‘;‘e:éq;: the Hammond Manor, bnracnnghonRDo-l.g?m‘,;:.ccd
i jon
{his Coloncl Rezin Hammond of the Revoluti

hi r?egsrx‘wphcws ‘Denton and Matthias, as recorded in Anne Arundel
B e ostate adjoined “ Dorsey’s Search,” the dividing lines o

i Settled by the Court of Chanoery. -
W S ;cgtﬂ:em vas seated Dr. Tloyd T Hamaond (of Philip),
both dseending to Judge Edward Hammond and Colonel Mathisd

D mond, Wheso families have been united by the martinge

o ammond (of Judge Edward) to Grace, the only duughter

o CMH:SQ;“:?}‘:T home of Patuxent John Dorsey, is at Columbia.

i si CH Ligon—now
joining i the west is the residence o[_(‘mvgmor g ¢
ﬁ:‘l"do‘l‘)]ml%islio%". “i)nrscy's Tall” is a splendid relic of the cu_rlydsib
Homent of Howard, 1t is a large brick I!{m\\se, now modernized by
o esent owner, Mr. Reuben Dorsey Rogers. )
s p&ﬁ?ﬁnb‘:?‘: the mecting point of r_oads leading from Annapolis,
Laurel and Sandy Spring to Bllicott City.

PATUXENT JOHN DORSEY OF DORSEY’S SEARCH.”

This pioneer settler of Howard signed his name “John Dursuﬁ, g
9

riter of his wil

Jr.” His wife and Dr. Joshua Warfield, the wi

corded him )
e in Dorsey,” because his estatc was on both

et branch of the Patuxcnt, which up to 1725 was the di

of Baltimore and Anne Arundel Counties. Patusent r;:;u}l E;::y oL
i r. R. Do 5

ubstaniial manor house, now held by Mr. R, Borsey Tt o

dest son of Fon. John and Plessance

immediately at Columbia, P
father was Bdward Dorsey, ol

unknown, but _she may have be

sons.

Captain John Dorscy.” ' His ncighbors called him

4 i board of “The Good Hope,”

Hly. I 1694 he was o mariner upon board of The Good Hope
: ommand of Captain Richard ITill. - His wife Ruth s

under the command of G e traditional “ Lady Hill'—=

daughter of Captain Richard. Edward and Ruth had only two
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At the time of his father’s will,in 1714, he was “ Bdward Dorsey
deccased.”  She became, first, Mrs, John Greeniff and then the wife
of John Howard, grandson of Matthew Howard, of the Severn. Her
will of 1747 named “her two sons, John and Edward Dorsey, her
executors.”” She was then residing in Queen Caroline Parish, perhaps
with one of them. Patuxent John Dorsey was a progressive
man. Holding the extensive tract of “ Dorsey’s Search,” he enlarged
it and then made the first surveys in the neighborhood of New
Market and upon the Linganore. These were “ Dorscy’s Scarch,”
“Good Luck,” Mt. Peasant,” “Pleasant Valley.” A view of him
is in the following letter from a Baltimore merchant to his uncle in
London.

“Mr. John Dorsey desires that I recommend your payment of
his sons draft for £50. e has six hogsheads of tobacco in Captain
Spencer’s ship, and you will be right to pay it, as great umbrage to
* that family would be given, otherwise. Ely Dorsey desired that I
* would write that Robert Tzard’s draft for £10 and Benjamin Brown’s

for £0 be paid, which pray do. Ely and the old man are very
serviceable to you, and you must be very careful to oblige them. In
. short, they are very powerful among the people.” (Old Brick
Churches.)

The above letter shows that Tly Dorsey, though not mentioned
in Patuxent John Dorsey’s will, was the son of the “old man,” and
not, as some of his descendants claim, the son of Edward Dorsey,
a brother. Captain John Dorscy held a pew in the parish church.

His will of 1761, reads: “1, John Dorsey, Jr., bequeath unto my
son Samuel, 450 acres of “Dorsey’s Search,” “Sam’s Folly,” and
“Pleasant Valley.” I give to my son, Benjamin, my tract called
“Long Reach” and also, lands adjoining “ Dorscy’s Search;” also,
a part of “Partnership,” laid out by Plummer. To my son, John
Dorsey, “Good Luck.” To William Hall, of Elk Ridge, all the
residuc of “ Partnership.” , To my daughter, Rachel Hall, ten pounds
current money in full for her part. I give to my daughter, Lucy
" Dorsey, as much land as will make Ler part equal to my sons, Samucl

and Benjamin. 1 have already given to my married daughters their
rtions.  All the residue of my estate to be divided equally except
achel Hall.
“My loving wife, Elizabeth Dorsey, and my son, Basil, to admin-
John Dorsey, Jr.”

ister.

Basil Dorsey was then upon “Dorsey’s Search,” in Frederick
County, and Ely Dorsey upon “ Dorsey’s Search Enlarged,” in Anne
Arundel, near Elionk; Lucy and Rachel’s inheritance were ncar St.
James Church. “Good Luck” was upon the Linganore, near New
Windsor.

The will of Mrs. Elizabeth Dorsey, in 1775, named her children,
Ely Dorsey, Basil, Benjamin, John, Samuel, Ruth Talhott, Rachel
Ridgely, Deborah Dorsey and Lucy Dorsey.
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1664. His son, Colonel Thomas Sprigg and Margaret Osborne, hig
wife, held “\orthampcon, Prince George Cou.nt\ A full] len gth
portrait of him, in court costume, was loncr a part of the old “ North.
ampton” homestead, which later was bou'rht by Lord Fairfax,
Mary Sprigg, ddughter of Colonel Thomas, “became Mrs Thomas.
Stockett, Jr.

Osborne Sprigg (of Colonel Thomas) was a leader in politics.
His daughter, Margaret, married Colonel William Bowie and became
the mother of Governor Robert Bowie. By a second wife, daughter
of Colonel Joseph Belt, came Osborne Sprigg, Jr., signer of the
Declaration of Freemen. His brother, Joseph, married, first, Hannah
(Lee) Bowie, and by a second wife was the father of Governor
Samuel Sprigg. “Northampton” came to Governor Sprigg from
his uncle, Osborne Sprigg, Jr.

Governor Sprigg married Violetta Lansdale, first cousin of
Catharine (Lansdale) Bowie, wife of Robert William Bowie (of
Governor Robert); these were heirs of General Isaac Lansdale, of
the Revolution, a wealthy planter.

Governor kpngg’" onl‘ son was Osborne Spr

Governor Sprigg was elected in 1819, duri campaign of
extreme partisan excitement, in which the Democrats gained a slight
majority on joint ballot. Proscription was the watchword throughout
the State, and many changes were made. Governor g was
aided by a new Council composed of Democrats, and the f tempt
to revolutionize existing inequalities was the attempted

tion of

the election of Governor, pro 7 for an Ple(t'ou b; people.
The Federalists bltterb oppo\ed owthewhole
government of the State into the power of Baltimore -, with its
one-third foreign vote. It was a_fight between ci d county
and the Senate defeated it. The Cm of attempted
to gain additional representative: efeated.

A resolution asking that Missouri be admitted without conditions
to the Maryland delegates in Congress.

sm of President Madison’s conduct of the v
onsiderable power in the State, but the Di
victorious at the next election and re-elected Governor ¢
by fifty-seven votes, which was made unanimous.
again received the electoral vote of Maryland in
election of Governor in 1821 resulted in honoring Go
for the third time. Governor Sprigg was, later, a str
of the internal improvements and was a member of the
in which he presided as president.

GOVERNOR SAMUEL STEVENS.

Governor Samuel Stevens, twentieth Governor of Maryland
(1823-25), was born in Talbot County and was the son of Samuel
Stevens, who had taken up a considerable estate. He w ucated
in the pubh(, schools, and in 1804 married Eliza May, of Chester
County, Pennsylvania.
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. on the other the Senators. Having reached the portico,
1 was introduced to the members of both Houses. Then
citizens pressed forward to be presented. When the
named my grandfather and gave the battles of Brandywine
wn in which he had fought, the old men rushed into
s arms and wept like two children. This scene made an-
on my young mind which can never be erased.”—

Stevens left no son. Descendants of a daughter still
oridge, Maryland. The following is an obituary notice

stant (1860) at ‘Compton,” near Trapp
i Ex-Governor Samuel Stevens, in
has another, and about the last, of th
ized the last generation, toppled and

/ GOVERNOR JOSEPH KENT.

expiration of Governor Stevens’ term. in 1825, Hon.
s chosen. He was the son of Daniel Kent, of Prince
He studied medicine and entered into partnership
an, in Lower Marlborough. In 1807 D: nt removed
of Bladenshurg and became Surgeon’s Mate, under the
ent. He was promoted to Major L ant Colonel
Cavalry. He presided at the first public meeting in
or the organization of the Chesap d Ohio canal,
director. Nominated for Congr ated Hon.
Mercer. He was Presidential Elector in 1816, casting
mes Monroe. He was elected to the Tenth and re-elected
th, Eighteenth and Nineteenth Congres igning up-
n as Governor
meeting in Washington over which Dr. Kent presided
mpt to connect Baltimore with Cumbe; by way of
River. Subsequent surveys developed impractic-
enterprise.
ng held in Baltimore in 1827 the idea of a railroad was
Dr. Kent was on the committee which reported in
iate efforts to establish a double track between Balti-
point on the Ohio River. He, with Charles Carroll,
’ Charles Ridgely and others, was upon committee
arter. This was promptly granted on February 28th.
the stock was subscribed and on April 25th the company
Was org &d by electing Philip Evan Thomas president. On July
4,1828: rner stone was laid by Charles Carroll, of * Carrollton,”
with eivi: Zonors.  Governor Kent, in his message to the Assembly,
u;g_ed port of both rival enterpri He also urged the
to grant Maryland her portion of the public lands, to
the Western States were doing, to the cause of
He suggested the propriety of changing the mode of

beautiful
ty-second
ng pillars

to securs -
On Apr
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This record shows that if Colonel Ienry Ridgely’s wife was
Elizabeth Howard, she was not the mother of Colonel Ridgely’s son
Henry. His mother cvidently belonged to the house of James
Warner and Blizubeth Harris, his wife. In 1679, Henry Ridgely,
Sr., was commissioned associate Justice of Annc Arundel; in 1689,
he was appointed “Captain of the Foote”; in 1602, he was a mem:
ber of the Lower House; in 1694, he was promoted Major, and in
the same_year was advanced to Colonel in the Militia. In 1685,
Colonel Henry surveyed “Ridgely’s Forrest.” Tt covered all the
land surrounding Annapolis Junction and Savage Factory. In 1699,
he granted to his son Henry, 220 acres of “ Broome” and 200 acres
of “Wardridge.” Upon this combined plantation, Henry Ridgely,
Jr., having removed from his Annapolis homestead, died in early
manhood, thirty years of age, in 1699. There in the reserved grave-
yard stood, for years, the well preserved tablet to his memory. In
1702, Colonel Henry sold Charles Carroll “the house and lot in
Annapolis, lately in the tenture of my son, adjoining the lots of
Charles and Rachel Kilburne.” Tn 1696, Colonel Henry Ridgely
married Mary (Stanton) Duvall, widow of Marcen Duvall, the
THuguenot, and with her administered on Duvall’s estate. e then
removed across the river to Prince George’s County, where he
became a_merchant. His will, written in 1705, with codicils, was
probated in 1710. It reads: “I give to my wifc Mary, my home,
plantation, *Cotton’; Mary’s Delight’ and * Larkin’s Folly,” which
I bought of Thomas Larkin, to an wnborn child. To son Charles
Ridgely, all that plantation called ‘Togg Neck,” and 300 acres of
“Ridgely’s Lot,’ lying at ‘ Huntington, A. A.’, cxcepting lands sold
to Thomas Reynolds and Neale Clarke, near Wi, Grifliths. 1 give
also, to son Charles, 300 acres of ‘ Wardridge,’ adjoining * [oge Neck.”
My ‘wearing apparel to my brother, William, and my son, Charles.
‘Larkin Forrest,’ if there be no heir, to be divided between Henry
Ridgely and Nicholas Ridgely, sons of his deceased son, Henry,
and Henry, son of his son, Charles Ridgely. The remaining part of
“Wardridge,” to go to grandson, Henry Ridgely, son of Ilenry,
deceased, after Charles had 300 acres out of it. 1t ‘Mary’s Delight’
is not possessed by an heir, it is to be divided between John Brewer,
Joseph Brewer, Thomas Odall and Henry Odall, sons of Thomas
Odall, (clsewhere written Odell). T give to my daughter, Sarah
Odall; wife of Thomas, a negroe girl; to all my grandchildren, £10;
to my god-daughter, Martha Duvall, £51, and a cow and call. To
St. Barnabas Chiurelr, Queen Parish, Prince George, £20. Grandsons,
Henry and Nicholas Ridgely, to be under the e
and Charles Greenberry, until of age. The re
here or in England, to go to my wife and exceutrix.”
were Louis Duvall and Thomas Reynolds.

The will of Joln Brewer mentions his wife, Sarah, his sons, John
and Joseph, and his father, Henry Ridgely, whom he made his
executor, with his wife Surs

“Wardridge,” or “ Waldridge,” and “Broome * the inheritance
of Henry Ridgely, the second, lay southwest of “Hockley,” on the
road leading to the head of South River. In its old graveyard,
which had been reserved, stood the following tablet:

“Here lyeth the body of Mr. Henry
Ridgely, who was born the 3rd of
Oct., 1669, and departed this life on
ye 19th day of March, 1700.”

Having been fractured by the encroachment of a neighboring
settler, the “ Peguy Stewart Chapter of the Colonial Dames,” ordered
its removal to the grounds of St. Ann’s Church, Annapolis. His
widow, Katherine (Greenberry) Ridgely, his executrix, later married
Captain John Howard, who named in his will, 1704, “the five
orphans of Henry Ridgely,” and requested his executors to grant
them their portions, as exprossed in the will of their father. They
were: Henry Ridgely, the third, later known as Colonel Henry
Ridgely, of Toward County; Judge Nicholas Ridgely, of Delaware;
Charles Ridgely, who inherited “ Howard Luck” from Captain John
Howard, and died soon after; Ann Ridgely, wife of Joshua Dorsey,
and Elizabeth, wife of Thomas Worthington; Nicholas Ridgely, of
Henry and Katherine, married Sarah Worthington; lived, after
marriage, on  Wyatt’s Ridge.” Upon a portion_of this stands
“Belvoir,” in sight of 1tound Bay. e also inherited a portion of
«Ridgely’s Forrest,” near Guilford, Howard County. Upon remov-
ing first to Cecil County, he sold the former tract to his brother-
indaw, John Worthington, Jr., and his wife’s inheritance on the
Severn, to her mother, Mrs. Sarah Brice. The heirs of Nicholas and
Sarah, all named in his bible record, were, Sarah, Rebeeea, Rachel,
Ruth and Ann, His wife died in 1721, His daughter, Rebecea, was
married “ Where I lived in Cecil Co., Md., on Wed., October, 1731, to
Benjamin Warfield, son of Mr. John Warfield, of Anne Arundel, Md.
by the Rev. Richard Sewell, Rector of Shrewsberry Parrish, Kent
Co., Md.”

The will of Mrs. Brice, in 1725, named her granddaughter,
Rebecea Ridgely, to whom she left, “one quart silver tankard, onc
dozen silver spoons, and £50, in money.” Similar legacies were
given to her sisters. In 1727, Mr. Nicholas Ridgely’s wife was Ann
Trench Gordon, daughicr of Robert French, and widow of James Gor-
don. She bore him one daughter, Mary, who, became Mrs, Patrick
Martain. In 1727, Nicholas and Ann Ridgely’ of Cecil County, sold
to John Brown, his inheritance “ Ridgely’s Forrest,” which was re-
surveyed into “ Browne’s Purchase,”  1Tis daughter Rachel, beeame
the wife of John Vining, Speaker of Delaware Asscmbly, who owned
a large estate in New Jerscy, On one of his visits there, he was
taken sick, died, and was buricd at_St. John’s Chureh, Salem.
Under the nisle, & stone with an inscription, marks_the sepuleher.
Mrs. Rachel Vining dicd in 1753, and was buried under the pew of
her father, Judge Ridgely, in Christ Church, Dover.
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In 1741, Governor George Thomas, commissioned Nicholas
Ridgely as follows: “Reposing a special trust in your loyalty and
courage, I have nominated you to he Captain of the Militia Foote,
in the upper part of the county of Kent. You are, therefore, to
take said Company into your charge, as Captain, and duly exercise
both the officers and soldiers in arms, and for so doing, this is
your commission. Given under my hand and seal as arms, at the
town of New Castle, on the Delaware, 3rd Feb., 1741.

GBORGE THOMAS.”

Governor Warfield, a descendant, has the original commission
in his possession.

In 1745, Judge Ridgely became the guardian of Caesar Rodney,
who later became the most distinguished patriot of the state. To
his training, also, was due the successful careers of his son, Dr.
Charles Ridgely, and of the brilliant John Vining, his wife’s grand-
son.

Quoting again from the Ridgely manuseript: “Nicholas Ridgely
sccond son of Ilenry Ridgely, was born at  Wardridge, in 1604,
He was thirty-cight years of age when he moved to “Iiden 15l &
handsome plantation near Dover. Mr. Ridgely at once took his
place among the leading citizens of his adopted state, filling, with
honor, the offices of Kent County, Clerk of the Peace, Justice of
the Peace, Prothonatory, Register in Chancery, Judge of the Supreme
Court of New Castle, Kent and Sussex Counties; enjoying the honor
until his death, in 1755, In 1735, as foreman of the Grand Jury
he signed a pefition to King George T1, against granting a charter
to Lord Baltimore, in abrogation of the rights of the Penn family,
in the three lower counties.”

In 1743, his daughters, Sarah and Rachel, granted a power of
attorney, attested by Nicholas Ridgely and Rebecca Warficld, to
their uncle, Henry Ridgely, to reccive legacies from their grand-
mother’s estate. They were then located, “in Kent Co., on the
Delaware, in Territories of Pennsylvania.” Judge Ridgely’s third
wife was Mary Middleton Vining, widow of Captain Benjamin
Vining, a lady who held a large estate. Her son, Judge John Vining,
married Phoche Wynecoop. Their son, John, was “the Patrick
Henry of Delaware,” of brilliant wit, lawyer, member of the first
Continental Congress, and “the pet of Delaware.”” His sister, the
Dbeautiful Mary Vining, the admiration of General Lalayette,
became the bethrothed wife of General Anthony Wayne, who died
before the wedding day. Judge Ridgely’s daughter, Llizabeth,

Dr. Charles Ridgely, of Judge N y, was born in
1738, Tle beeame an cminent physi “iden Hill,”
but later in the house wpon “The lsed by Judge
Ridgely, in Dover. Iis son, Nicholas, by his first wile, Mary
Wyncoop, was the first chaneellor of Delaware, universally respected
as'an able jurist, a_courteous gentleman of the old school, in dress
and demeanor, holding to provincial customs.
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Dr. Charles Ridgely i
: s Ridgely’s second wife, Ann . im £
;g::{er;&d chi‘);‘ Moore Ridgely, his oldest sor. 0:?;02’0‘:;0;] e hx:c
Congrea s 1175, he was admitied to the hay, in Js0se o 1e
ther e I811; Secrctary of State, 1817, and again 1 10 2
et puccted the scattered archives of the Sgate B 2oy geile
gl to tho léc%;s];‘xmre, he framed the most, impértancple:;':tgdz
. 7, he was sent to the United Stages 4
he Syocated o bigh protective tarif. o died 1o i e
o Childre:;epnl,ﬁguﬁzn“?xs m;;}lity-scc(()ed birthday, 1847 Ho lofs
- His oldest son, Henry (V.) Ridgals i1 i i
serene old 2 an honored resident of i)uv'erg cl;f&dm”%;gg' i
o prominery Fenry Ridgely, was the father of Henry Rijontss L
deseondang oy wyer, of Dover. Ho married Matdy gy
Wil e ot f the distinguished Maryland family, o nagice 13 S,
homentengd e s, I5¢ Of governors. They oooupy the. froom
captionced, the exterior of which is severely plain. - Py el
2 Dover asjist. "5 0ral designs of the Tow cellings, are thy. o o3
the axtistis pagiils delicale Lints of the drawing room mae: )
with the dynengngs of the guest chamber, contrast harmonio
in whigh, work panclings of the wido hall, which fs-alss temiCUSY
the bo o3t Known as William Penin's.  In the e e
! X bus Ve Brown in a contury or more, inte st
:nﬁuﬁm}%ﬁ, o _ﬂ}e top of which one may \vqullO?zﬁmrlI’:SI e
ol lmg i :UCI;: R_nl;;o]} and his family liked to L'ﬁgen?e;lpzﬁ
¥ 3 ar view idgely I s
R, iax iew of the Ridgely house reveals a slustor
enry Ridgely, of Henry Catheri
_ y, o ¥ and Katherine, of “Wardridge,”
goming to manbood, in 1711, sold s homestead mvsfi]xrd}fﬁ%ﬁ' i
Jaw, e Té\fmh::hlu{nm?p, and removed to his_grand-father’y
s Y, untingt is b i p n
ot o o uington. His biography will be found in
Sarah Ridgely, only daugh Y
i ’ aughter of Colonel Henry, "
8.dcd\lnfe‘ofs Join Drewer, and after Lis death, shin:r)\;ug?dt T
+ A skeleh of the Brewer family will be found elsmner ™"

WILLIAM RIDGELY, OF SOUTH RIVER.

William Ridgely i i
Ridgely came to this province of Ma i

Clone Tenry’s will shows him o b by brother, e o 2.
Bl e b 1Q§e;:{y:r?¥%;.ln.ng,~ northside of South River. © 1
head of South River, and made 5, 1 homessiad P 8100 86 the
Iy's Boghann and Blizabeth Ridgely, Lis wite, sold in 1710, *TRidye.
ly's Begnine,” ORA‘&K;U:)fyCm tt, the Annapolis merchant, (()(TILy
son, tidgely, Jr., was named pon hi
;{niavr;;n;iz: 1‘-00 r;]m‘nvc_] Westall, daughter of H;((vrtljr;v \gi?c':u I;F“; i
to Wil Sevaiiamn Ridgely, S, and izabeth, his wife, dooth
“Abington, - e T A Jane, his wife, their homested eece
e that sume year, another decd Tor & poriio;
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ot was made by William Ridgely, St and Flizabeth,

of the home tra
5. Mary

o o and William Ridgely, Jr., and Jane, his wife, to M
Ridgely, late widow of Colonel ey,

e Ridgely, Sr., dicd in 1715, as shown by his testamentaty
recond, intestate, William Ridgely, Jr., alio died intestate. His
ey, Jane (Westall) Ridgely, left a will in 1748

Upon a twelve hundred acre tract of her fath
Wi, Burgess located the once flourishing town of Tondon.
will of 1686, he named this tract as once the property of “Mr. George
T onll wpon o portion of which is a town Juid out, ealled London-
town.”

Nivs. Jane (Westall) Ridgely named her heirs, William, Westall,
Sarah, John, Martha Maccubbin and Atice Woodward.

o idgely was made executor, and heired the homestead,
« Abington.” He married Blizabeth Muyo, of South River, and
bought of “yidward Gaither, of ‘Rdward, the whole of “Gaithers
Colleetion.” ”

¥

s cstate, Colonel
Tn his

ly inherited “Ridgely’s Chance,? it Frederick
County, and in his will of 1772, namod bis heirs, Sarah, William,
S, Povorelia, Isaae, Jacob, Alice, Martha, Richard and Jemima.

William Ridgely, the third, in 1726, mi jed Mary Orrick,
daughter of James and Priscilla (Rulcy) ‘Orrick. By the will of
Snthony Tulcy, of South River, 1710, b danghter, Priscilla Orrick,
ame into possession of * Bectenson’s Adventure,” on South River.
TFhis tract was taken up by Edward Deetenson and Lydia Watkins,
it wite, By the will of James Orrick, his danghter Mary Orrick
o evited one-third of his estate. Her mother, inheriting one-third,

beeame the wife of ‘Abraham Woodward, son of William \\"nu(lw}nd,oi

e Ridgely,

Do, William Woodward (of Abraham), mar ed Al
dmughter of William and Jane (WestalD Ridgely. Wi
. Jane, daughter of William and Mary (Orrick) Ridgely.
et son Henry, born 1770, marricd Eleanot, widow of Philip
Turner, and daughter of Colonel Thomas Williams by his wife,
e Duckott. - Their daughter, Jane Maria, becunt the wife of
Judge William Henry Baldwin, of Anne Arundel, and the mother
of o distinguished family of merchants.

e ond Mary (Orrick) Ridgely, had issue William, Nicholas,
Johm, Henry, Greenberry, Priscilla Grifith, Jane Woodward, Mary
Pamphrey, Sophia Pumphrey and Ann Righy. William Ridgely’s
Wil of 1708, probated in 1780, granted to sons John, Henry and
o eray, four trcts of Jand, * Ridgely’s Chaneo,” 81 nish Osk,”
Greenberey . * Piney (rove.” One-third of his tate wis
left to his wife Mary.

b ey Itidieely, youngest son of William aud Mary (Orsick)
Ridgely, born 1745, married Rachel daughter  of John
Ryan, who held an estate on 1ilk Ridec Sive joined him in decd-
g I estare upon South River, and with bin removed to Tl Ridge,
Whero Rey. Greenberry Ridgely took e Church.
About 1800, he moved to Baltimore and becume merehant.  His

Rttt . "
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sons were Tloyd, Lot, Noah, Silas, Greenberry, Tegac, Jumes and
Nicholas, born 1500, "This last son removed to Springheld, Tinoi
e b scquire a large estate. His son and successor, Mr. Charles
Ridgcly, of tho pringfield ironworks, and president of a banlk i
rod Mis an}au%(,ﬂirzxﬁ,;hl%%-] of .J(m)les Winston Barret, son of Captain
: > inston) Barret. Their so
Bnngrlixd&cly, is now Comptroller of the C’\[J‘:;?El]fmjon Hon. James
descongant of Riohacs whd ivabeth (Tery T s
A Riohard e, Framict Tribott's ther wan Doyiarain Falh, !
hard Ewen. ot Talbott’s f jimin Talbott
\};v;\r:ic wifo was Sarah Willmot—son o Riwrd Tulbath and Totn:
persnce Mermyman, Lis wile, son of Ldward Tulboit ind Mary
5, his wife, son of Edward Talb
Conle, fis wife,son of Richurd albott, the bt G
o 1 Cocenberry and Tarict Ridgely had Joue: Charles W. Ridgely,
of Lutherville; James L. Ridgely, the “O0dd Fellow. " grandiaiher
gf M. Frauk Deona; OI‘?:; g]xu_n,umin Riah Rigely, o Watrén,
vigorous writer and able P old, yor &
ice Ridgely, of William and Jane (Westall) Ridgely, will be

found in the Woodward sketch; o wi 0
Oy i e eesten e il Jase SHdeely ol ey

RICHARD WARFIELD, FIRST VESTRYMAN OF ST.
ANN'S CHURCH. '

A Warfield record, one hun
] cord, dred years old, stat “Ric
Xg:{ieﬁlﬁﬂseuleql near Annapolis, in” 1639.” “There. ii’:”nR‘dl"f &
ment there until 1640, and Richird Warfield, was not oDt

clors ne among them, however, in 1662

:Cis:h (;if ﬁrownsvlllc, Anne Arundel, “ﬁe&é“\vifé’f%”"& ool
peached back to the besutiful sheet of e Roudmiy s
Sovem,  Our ent | ]‘ljgéssh(ﬁv tha e held, during lis Tt Hf’w;‘;c
R e e ope,” ¢ Increase,” feld’s Plains,”

Warfield's Forest,” * Warfield’s o By nd P W
Ee e 7 “Brandy,” “and “ War-

In 1670, he married Ilinor, hei
, arried Ilinor, heiress of Captai v
of London, ho, wih Iis brotlor, Captoin e
o quipped merehant transports between London and
Richard Warfield’s wife inheri

 Richar s wife inherited “Hope” « »
o adjoining tracts, the istory of which e ol
oy were faken up by Henry Sowell; transf rred by hi
Jobn A\’V;, ,?} “\\ﬂ]c(l' vhy him to his daughter, I nhothy !lf“ b
Hory Vinchester, 11 hiese two joilrmd in decding them, in’ 1073, o

, mariner, of London. No furth of
o oo fond, bl i’ 1705 ichard acfiul Sppesced betcro
ssion, ore b ree 7 g

the commision, o rstoro tho lurat record of 1704, und roquesed
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THE SWEARINGEN FAMILY.

Teudal tenants under the lords of Dillingen, Garrett Van Swear-
ingen, a descendant of the old Bavarian family, was born in Holland,
1636, died 1712; married Barbara De Barretie, of Norman-French
lineage, in 1660. By her he had Thomas, born 1665. He married
Jane. Their son Van, born 1695, died 1785; married Elizabeth
Walker, of Patuxent, Maryland. Their son Charles—Susannah
Stull. Their son John—Elizabeth Bond, third daughter of John
Van Swearingen, born 1805, dicd 1887, married George Shafer—issue
Flizabeth Susan Shafer—Rev. John Beck.

Arms of Bond: irst and fourth sable, a fesse, or. Second and
third quarters, argent, on a chevron sable three bezants.

Crest: A demi-pegasus azure, winged and semi of cstailes, The
colors shown in the ske

JUDGE NICHOLAS BREWER.

Judge Nicholas Brewer, of the Sccond District of Maryland,
came down through a line of sturdy men commencing with John
Brewer, a Justice of Calvert County. “ Brewerton” and “Larkin-
ton,” near London Town, were the early surveys of his son, John
Brewer, son-in-law of Colonel Ienry Ridgely. Dying early, Colonel
Tlenry Ridgely became the exceutor for his two sons, John and
Joseph and one daughter, Blizabeth, named for her grandmother, a
Pierpoint. Colonel Henry Ridgely made these grandsons his heirs.
John Brewer, third in lin¢, through his wife, Dinah Battee, left four
sons and four daughters.

John, the clder, married Tleanor Maceubin, in 1727; five sons
and four daughters were their issue. The youngest, Rachel, became
the wife of the artist, Charles Wilson Peale, father of Rembrandt
Peale, of Philadelphia; Joseph, her brother, through his wife, Mary
Stockett, left Joseph, with otliers, who married a relative, Eleanor
Brewer, daughter of John and Rleanor Maccubin. Their son,
Nicholus Brewer, married Fanny Davis, daughter of the Revolution:
ary Robert Painc Davis. Their daughter, Mary Jane Brewer, married
Richard Ridgely, Judge of the Orphans Court and Register of
Chancery. e was the son of Absalom Ridgely, the merchant, by
Anne Robinson, and grandson of Henry Ridgely and Catharine Lusby
—coming down from Charles and Itliza Ridgely (of Colonel Henry).

Of this line of Absalom Ridgely was Dr. John Ridgely of the
Tripolitan war, and David Ridgely, the merehant, the State Librarian,
and Ridgely, the historizn, he

is our hon an, llihu S, Riley.

“The obituary notice of Nicholas Brewer, father of Judge Nicholas
Brewer, in 1539, written by the editor of the “Maryland Gazette,” pays
this tribute: “Thus, in his sixty-cighth ycar, closes another of the
most active, firm, steady a ns of the State or
age. A man who, as an opponent, wa man, open, undis-

and high-niinded.

guised, straightforvar

As a Iriend, no man was

1 often quoted. Another descendant

ever more ardent, whole-hearted and sincere.  For many years he
represented his city in the House of Delegates. He seldor spoke,
but never failed to command attention when he did speak. He was
twice an Elector of the Senate. As a next-door neighbor and most
intimate friend, as an associate for the third of a century, in peace
and in war, in sickness and in health, I can testify that Nicholas
Brewer was a man of inflexible integrity.”

Colonel Nicholas Brewer, born at Marley in 1789, known as
#the mill-boy of Marley,” removed to Baltimore in 1815. He was
the son of Captain Nicholas and Julia Brewer. Their ancestors came
to Massachusetts with the Puritans in 1644; went to Virginia with
the one hundred invited northern Puritans.  Four years later they
Were driven out of Virginia and came to South River, The pioneer
was John Brewer. Captain Nicholas Brewer was with Smallwood
in the Revolution. ITe was an extensive planter. His wife was the
daughter of Colonel Psalter, of Braddock’s army.

Colonel Nicholas Brewer was a member of the “Old Defenders”
of Baltimore in 1840. o

Ton. Nicholas Brewer, Judge of the Sccond District, was born
1795 Graduating at St. John’s College, he studied law. His wife
was Catharine Musscr Mediary, a_descendant of John Bauer, who
Jived in and took the name of the Tsle of Madeira.

Judge Brewer had ten children.  Of his legal record, Hon.
Reverdy Johnson has suid: “As an equity pleader he had few super-
jors.  As o judge he possessed the entire confidence of the legal
fraternity. 1is influence was great and his decisions just.”

CHIEF JUSTICE ROGER BROOKE TANEY.

Tn front of the State House at Annapolis, upon a pedestal far
below the height of his fame, sits the heroie form of a Marylander
whose name is world-wide. Born only a few miles south of the Anne
Arundel line, upon Batile Creek, he goes back through Roger
Brooke to the first commander ‘of the Patusent, Robert Brooke, “of
“Brooke Place.” Roger Brooke Tancy belongs to the history of
a stormy period. T'rom a little leather-covered pocket book, dated
1710, written by Roger Brooke, grandson of the commander and
progenitor of Roger Brooke Tancy, let me quote the following: At
the eloso of the month of June, 1650, there landed on the Patuxent,
twenty miles from its mouth, o family of forty persons, the body-
gard, male and female, of Mr. Robert Brooke and his wife, Mary
Mainwaring, and ten children, born in England.”  “Dela Brooke
was their first homestead.

In 1654 the family removed (o © Brooke Place,” on Battle Greck,
a name given by Mr. rooke in honor of his first wife, Mary Buker,
of Battle. Mer two sons, Baker and Major Thomas Brooke, of
“Brookfield,” accompanied the immigrants. The former became
member of the Provincial Council. The latter commanded the
Provincial forces and was (he founder of the present village of
T, B., taken from a landmark bearing his name.
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the financial manager of the household that he might be free for
public duties. In 1869, they celebrated their golden wedding. She
died in 1873, and he in 1876, whilst a guest at the governor’s man-
sion in Annapolis, within a stone’s throw of his birthplace, and in
sight of his Alma Mater.

SAPPINGTON FAMILY.

The records of All Hallows show two brothers, Thomas and
John Sappington, near South River. They had clearly come down
the bay from the homestead of Nathaniel Sappington, of Cecil
County, whose home was near the Sassafras River.

The will of Thomas Rutland, of South River, probated 1731,
names his son, Thomas ; daughter, Elizabeth Stuart; grandson,
Thomas Sappington, and granddaughter, Jeane, child of daughter
Ann Wayman, wife of Leonard Wayman.

The records of All Hallows show the marriage of Thomas
Sappington to Mary Rutland, and the birth of their son, Thomas
Sappington, legatee of Thomas Rutland. John Sappington, of All
Hallows, located his son, John Sappington, Jr., upon the estate known
as “Sappington,” upon which still stands the quaint little college
at Sappington Station, of the Annapolis & Elk Ridge railroad. The
present house is claimed to have been built by Caleb Sappington,
of John, Jr. It is an interesting relic of earlier days.

The Sappington family will be continued in Howard County
records.

RUTLAND FAMILY.

Thomas Rutland, the settler, married a daughter of Thomas
Linthicum. Three succeeding Thomas Rutlands follow. The daugh-
ters of the first were, Mrs. Elizabeth Stuart, Mrs. Ann Wayman and
Mrs. Mary Sappington. Thomas Rutland’s will, of 1783, names his
descendants.

" The second Thomas Rutland married Ann Beale daughter of
John and Elizabeth Norwood, daughter of Andrew by his wife,
Elizabeth Howard, of Captain Cornelius. The will of Mrs. Thomas
Rutland, in 1773, names her aunt, Hannah Norwood. .—

She gave a pair of sleeve buttons to Mary Snowden, daughter
of Eliza (Rutland) Snowden, but left the bulk of her estate to the
daughters of her sister, Elizabeth (Nicholson) Dorsey. Those nieces
were Ann Beale, Eliza Harrison and Mary Dorsey. The will of
Joseph Howard shows his daughter married another Thomas
Rutland. There was a row of houses in Annapolis, built by Thomas
Rutland, the large importing merchant of Annapolis.

RANDALL.

Early among the land holders of North Severn, was Christopher
Randall, who held “Randall’s Range,” “Randall’s Fancy” and
“Randall’s Purchase.” He died in 1684, when an inventory of his
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estate returned by Matthew Howard, shows his wife was Joan.
Richard Owings, a brother-in-law of Thomas Randall, son of Christo-
pher, was a debtor, and Christopher, Jr., Thomas Randall and one
sister were the heirs. All these removed to Baltimore County.

Closely connected with this Randall family were the English
merchants, Thomas and Anthony Bale, written in the chancery
records as both Bale and Beal. The will of Urath Bale, who names
her aunt, Hannah Randall, is on record at Annapolis. Hannah
Bale became the wife of Thomas Randall, who died in 1722. Her
will, of 1727, names her son, Christopher, and her daughter, Urath
(Urith), later wife of Samuel Owings, of Owings Mills.

Mrs. Hannah Randall also named her daughter-in-law, Catherine,
wife of Christopher, her son, and leaves a ring to her brother-in-law,
Christopher Randall, whose wife was Ann. The latter left a will,
in Baltimore, naming his sons, Roger, Aquilla and John. The latter
heired the Anne Arundel estate. The daughters were Johanna, Ruth
and Rachel.

Christopher and Thomas united, in 1710, in selling “Randall’s
Range” to John Harwood.

Both branches of this family live in the neighborhood of Ran-
dallstown and Owings Mill. The estate of Samuel Owings occu-
pied a pretty large slice of Baltimore County, and all through the
West are descendants who still bear the name of Urith, handed
down from “Urath Bale.”

Captain John Randall, of Anne Arundel, held “a flat,” in 1731,
from which a man fell and was drowned.—(St. Paul Records.)

Richard Randall, of Anne Arundel, owned “Tower Hill.”” His
heirs were Margaret, Elizabeth and John Randall. They sold this
tract in 1792. Richard Randall’s sisters were, Elizabeth—Ben-
jamin Atwell, in 1799; Lorena—Frederick Goatee, in 1800; Atridge
—John Smith, 1807; Ruth—Joseph Norman, 1792; Anna—George
Kirby, 1798. -

Another Anne Arundel branch of the family was Catherine Ran-
dall, whose will, of 1729, names “her son Robert Welsh,” and her
grandsons, James Lewis and Robert Welsh, and gave them “Town
Hill” and “Diligent Search.”

The present Randall family, of Annapolis, comes from a
Virginia settler, who came up much later than Christopher Randall.

This branch will elsewhere be given.

JOHN GILL.

John Gill was born in Annapolis, August 15th, 1841. His
father was Richard W. Gill, son of John Gill, of Alexandria, Virginia,
and his mother was Miss Ann E. Deale, daughter of Captain James
Deale, of Anne Arundel County.

In an autobiography of his early life General Gill writes:

“My father died when I was about ten years old. My mother
was left with four children—two girls and two boys. Fortunately,
my father had left an estate sufficient to provide comfortably for








